

MEETING OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, TRANSPORT AND CLIMATE EMERGENCY SCRUTINY COMMISSION

- DATE: TUESDAY, 7 SEPTEMBER 2021
- TIME: 5:30 pm
- PLACE: Meeting Room G.01, Ground Floor, City Hall, 115 Charles Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ

Members of the Commission

Councillor Joel (Chair) Councillor Sandhu (Vice-Chair)

Councillors Fonseca, Malik, Porter, Rae Bhatia, Singh Johal and Valand

Members of the Commission are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business listed overleaf.

For Monitoring Officer

Officer contacts:

Sazeda Yasmin (Scrutiny Policy Officer) Aqil Sarang (Democratic Support Officer)

Tel: 0116 4546350 e-mail: aqil.sarang@leicester.gov.uk

Leicester City Council, City Hall, 3rd Floor Granby Wing, 115 Charles Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ

Attending meetings and access to information

You have the right to attend formal meetings such as full Council, committee meetings, and Scrutiny Commissions and see copies of agendas and minutes.

However, on occasion, meetings may, for reasons set out in law, need to consider some items in private.

Due to COVID restrictions, public access in person is limited to ensure social distancing. We would encourage you to view the meeting online but if you wish to attend in person, you are required to contact the Democratic Support Officer in advance of the meeting regarding arrangements for public attendance. A guide to attending public meetings can be found here: https://www.leicester.gov.uk/your-council/decisions-meetings-and-minutes/public-attendance-at-council-meetings-during-covid-19/

Members of the public can follow a live stream of the meeting on the Council's website at this link: <u>http://www.leicester.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcasts</u>

Dates of meetings and copies of public agendas and minutes are available on the Council's website at www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk, or by contacting us using the details below.

To hold this meeting in as Covid-safe a way as possible, all attendees are asked to follow current Government guidance and:

- maintain distancing while entering and leaving the room/building;
- remain seated and maintain distancing between seats during the meeting;
- wear face coverings throughout the meeting unless speaking or exempt;
- make use of the hand sanitiser available;
- when moving about the building to follow signs about traffic flows, lift capacities etc;
- comply with Test and Trace requirements by scanning the QR code at the entrance to the building and/or giving their name and contact details at reception prior to the meeting;
- if you are displaying Coronavirus symptoms: a high temperature; a new, continuous cough; or a loss or change to your sense of smell or taste, you should NOT attend the meeting, please stay at home, and get a PCR test.

NOTE: Due to COVID restrictions, public access in person is limited to ensure social distancing. We would encourage you to view the meeting online but if you wish to attend in person, you are required to contact the Democratic Support Officer in advance of the meeting regarding arrangements for public attendance.

Separate guidance on attending the meeting is available for officers. Officers attending the meeting are asked to contact the Democratic Support Officer in advance to confirm their arrangements for attendance.

This meeting will be webcast live at the following link:-

http://www.leicester.public-i.tv

An archive copy of the webcast will normally be available on the Council's website within 48 hours of the meeting taking place at the following link:-

http://www.leicester.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcasts

Making meetings accessible to all

<u>Wheelchair access</u> – Public meeting rooms at the City Hall are accessible to wheelchair users. Wheelchair access to City Hall is from the middle entrance door on Charles Street - press the plate on the right hand side of the door to open the door automatically.

<u>Braille/audio tape/translation -</u> If you require this please contact the Democratic Support Officer (production times will depend upon equipment/facility availability).

<u>Induction loops -</u> There are induction loop facilities in City Hall meeting rooms. Please speak to the Democratic Support Officer using the details below.

<u>Filming and Recording the Meeting</u> - The Council is committed to transparency and supports efforts to record and share reports of proceedings of public meetings through a variety of means, including social media. In accordance with government regulations and the Council's policy, persons and press attending any meeting of the Council open to the public (except Licensing Sub Committees and where the public have been formally excluded) are allowed to record and/or report all or part of that meeting. Details of the Council's policy are available at <u>www.leicester.gov.uk</u> or from Democratic Support.

If you intend to film or make an audio recording of a meeting you are asked to notify the relevant Democratic Support Officer in advance of the meeting to ensure that participants can be notified in advance and consideration given to practicalities such as allocating appropriate space in the public gallery etc..

The aim of the Regulations and of the Council's policy is to encourage public interest and engagement so in recording or reporting on proceedings members of the public are asked:

- ✓ to respect the right of others to view and hear debates without interruption;
- ✓ to ensure that the sound on any device is fully muted and intrusive lighting avoided;
- ✓ where filming, to only focus on those people actively participating in the meeting;
- ✓ where filming, to (via the Chair of the meeting) ensure that those present are aware that they may be filmed and respect any requests to not be filmed.

Further information

If you have any queries about any of the above or the business to be discussed, please contact: **Aqil Sarang, Democratic Support Officer on 0116 4546350**. Alternatively, email, or call in at City Hall.

For Press Enquiries - please phone the Communications Unit on 0116 454 4151.

AGENDA

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION

If the emergency alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building immediately by the nearest available fire exit and proceed to the area outside the Ramada Encore Hotel on Charles Street as directed by Democratic Services staff. Further instructions will then be given.

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are asked to declare any interests they may have in the business to be discussed on the agenda.

3. QUESTIONS, REPRESENTATIONS AND STATEMENTS OF CASE

The Monitoring Officer to report on any Questions, Representations or Statements of Case received in accordance with Council procedures.

4. **PETITIONS**

The Monitoring Officer to report on any Petitions received in accordance with the Council Procedures.

5. LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN AND WORKPLACE Appendix B PARKING LEVY (Pages 1 - 8)

The Director of Planning Development and transportation Submits a report on the Local Transport Plan and Workplace Parking Levy.

Members of the Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Commission have been invited to participate in the discussions on this item.

Members of the Commission are recommended to note the report and pass any comments to Director of Planning, Development and Transportation.

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Apprendix A

Leicester Transport Plan/Workplace Parking Levy Consultation

EDTCE Scrutiny

Date of meeting: 7th September 2021

Lead director/officer: Andrew L Smith/Stuart Maxwell

Useful information

- Ward(s) affected: ALL
- Report author: Andrew Smith
- Author contact details: andrewl.smith@leicester.gov.uk
- Report version number: v1.0

1. Summary

- 1.1. A draft Leicester Transport Plan and outline of a proposed Workplace Parking Levy for the city was launched for consultation on 25th June, closing 17th September.
- 1.2. The plan sets out the transport challenges and opportunities faced by the city over the period to 2036 and proposes ambitious measures to improve public transport, cycling and walking in response.
- 1.3. Alongside the public consultation exercise extensive stakeholder engagement continues to receive views from business, public sector and other community groups.

2. Recommended actions/decision

2.1 Scrutiny commission members are requested to comment on the draft plans.

3. Scrutiny / stakeholder engagement

- 3.1 A report was presented to EDTT Scrutiny Commission on 22nd August 2019 outlining initial work underway to prepare the Local Transport Plan and Workplace Parking Levy.
- 3.2 The current public consultation exercise can be found at <u>Leicester Transport Plan</u> <u>Consultation</u>. This has been widely communicated through the media and direct correspondence to stakeholders and interested groups and individuals.
- 3.3 Meetings through video conferences are also taking place with a large number of stakeholders. These include internal council stakeholders, business groups, universities and colleges, UHL, disabled access groups, other councils and other organisations in the city.
- 3.4 The results of the consultation will be published in due course and will feed into a final version of the Leicester Transport Plan and the next stage of formal consultation on a Workplace Parking Levy.

4. Background and options with supporting evidence

See section 5

5. Detailed report

- 5.1 The Leicester Transport Plan and Workplace Parking Levy documents and a summary video are available for members to review at the links below:
 - Draft Leicester Transport Plan
 - Workplace Parking Levy Initial Consultation Document
 - Leicester Transport Plan Video

A summary presentation will be made at the Scrutiny session.

- 5.2 The council is consulting on a new draft Leicester Transport Plan which sets out the council's transport vision, ambitions and priorities for the city over the next 15 years. Initial thinking on the potential of a Workplace Parking Levy that could help deliver the plan is also the subject of consultation.
- 5.3 A new Transport Plan for Leicester is needed to respond to the many issues facing the city including enabling city economic and population growth, tackling climate emergency and air quality challenges, improving health and physical activity levels, improving accessibility for all and recovery from the Covid-19 pandemic. The recent release of the Government's 'Decarbonising Transport' Strategy and expected tougher air quality limits will place additional challenges requiring steps to be set out in local transport plans.
- 5.4 The council has invested very heavily in public transport, cycling and walking in recent years through the Connecting Leicester, Air Quality, Transport Recovery and most recently through the Transforming Cities and Getting Building Fund programmes. This has brought in substantial Government funding. This provides a strong platform for the Leicester Transport Plan looking forward.
- 5.5 The draft plan proposes a transport vision which is for a_carbon neutral, growing, healthy, accessible and connected city, with clean air supporting a high quality of life and travel experience for people and a vibrant local economy.

5.6 Proposed transport ambitions are set out in the plan up to 2036:

- 100% zero emission vehicles
- More people regularly working from home and more responsible use of cars for necessary trips only
- Public transport, Park & Ride, cycling or personal e-mobility as first transport choice for most people (longer journeys)
- Active transport, cycling and walking as first transport choice for most people (shorter journeys)
- A thriving, accessible city centre that is easy to move around in and which supports economic growth in the whole city
- Healthier neighbourhoods, aiming for all local services to be available by walking or cycling within 15 minutes, with cleaner air and a safer local environment

- A rush-hour free city, gradually managing traffic to reduce peak hour demands
- 5.7 The draft plan proposes a big step forward for public transport, cycling and walking in the city to address the challenges and opportunities noted above. It focuses on three main areas:



Connected Corridors & Hubs

- Connected commuter corridors for buses, cycling and walking
- Greenlines electric bus network
- New and improved Park & Ride sites
- Transformed Leicester Rail Station



Connected Healthy Neighbourhoods

- Connected cycling and walking networks city centre and local neighbourhoods
- Good local bus network
- Fewer and cleaner vehicles in neighbourhoods

Managing Demand for Car Use

- Parking management and co ordination
- Behaviour change
- Smart transport
- Network management
- Workplace parking levy
- 5.8 The delivery of the plan relies on securing funding from a range of national, regional and local funding sources such as Government, Midlands Connect and LLEP. External funding is generally secured through ad-hoc and competitive funding bids, usually requiring match funding. The Government has indicated that future funding may be tied to priorities set out in Local Transport Plans. This is most likely to require local sources of match funding.
- 5.9 The Council is also consulting on a workplace parking levy linked to the Leicester Transport Plan. This would place a charge on employers across the city for eligible parking places used by car commuters. The charge can, if desired, be passed on to employees. The levy both acts to manage and reduce demand for car use and also invest in sustainable transport projects. These would help to deliver the council's main transport plan priorities above.
- 5.10 If supported and approved this could provide an ongoing stream of available funding to support the delivery of transport priorities, including match funding to attract external funding sources. This approach has been used effectively in Nottingham City Council and has raised £75million in WPL revenues since 2012 and leveraged over £680million transport investment.
- 5.11 Initial thinking on the potential role of a future workplace parking levy to help deliver key transport projects in Leicester is outlined in the current consultation exercise (link above). This sets out the basic principles of a levy and current thinking on the approach to charging and exemptions/discounts. It also indicates how businesses and

4

other organisations that are subject to the levy would be supported by the council using WPL funds. This will be outlined in the presentation to scrutiny.

- 5.12 Following this initial stage of consultation, a formal consultation on a detailed workplace parking levy business case is expected later this year. The supporting documents included in the consultation link above include an assessment of the potential for a levy in Leicester carried out by DMU. An economic, environmental and equality impact assessment is being prepared for the WPL business case.
- 5.13 The current programme for the Leicester Transport Plan and Workplace Parking Levy is as follows:
 - 25 Jun 17 Sept: LTP / initial WPL public consultation
 - Nov: Publish Consultations report
 - Nov Dec: WPL formal business case consultation
 - Spring 2022: Council consideration of LTP final document & WPL business case and business case submitted to Secretary of State
 - Autumn 2022: if approved ... WPL mobilised
 - Early 2023: WPL Charging would commence

6. Financial, legal, equalities, climate emergency and other implications

6.1 Financial implications

The Local Transport Plan will provide a framework for future investment in Transport in the city over the period to 2036. Funding is likely to come from a number of local and Government sources. A workplace parking levy is being proposed that, if approved, would contribute an ongoing stream of funding to support the ongoing delivery of transport priorities set out in the plan.

Colin Sharpe – Deputy Director of Finance Ext 37 44081

6.2 Legal implications

The process for preparing a workplace parking levy scheme is included in the Transport Act 2000 and the Workplace Parking Levy (England) Regulations 2009.

It should be noted that statutory consultation and Secretary of State approval will be required before the scheme can be introduced.

The report includes draft plans for the workplace parking levy and draft transport policy. Consultation is required for changes to any Council policies. Consultation advice has been provided separately.

Consultation responses should be considered prior to any decision-making regarding changes to the policy and the implementation of the workplace parking levy.

Shireen Eliyas ext 4479.

6.3 Equalities implications

Under the Equality Act 2010, public authorities have a Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) which means that, in carrying out their functions, they have a statutory duty to pay due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited by the Act, to advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who don't and to foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who don't.

Protected Characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation.

The Equality Act 2010 also requires that reasonable adjustments be made so that disabled people are not excluded from places that serve the public, including publicly accessible open spaces. This duty is on-going and anticipatory and, therefore, reasonable and proportionate steps to overcome barriers which may impede people with different kinds of disabilities.

Accessible and inclusive design relating to highway and transport schemes will support the general aims of the PSED and will be beneficial particularly in removing barriers to participation in public life. Ongoing engagement and consultation with key service user groups, disability groups and organisations is a vital aspect of ensuring that an inclusive approach which is consistent with the requirements of the Equality Act 2010 is taken.

The Local Transport Plan includes a commitment in its vision, ambitions, objectives and guiding principles to prioritising accessibility for all. It specifically outlines equality objectives within the guiding principles drawn from work carried out for Transport for London.

The plan sets out priorities for accessible and connected places within the city centre and local neighbourhoods.

The supporting documents include a comprehensive accessibility analysis that assesses the potential impacts of the Local Transport Plan on active and public transport accessibility.

An Equality Impact Assessment is being produced for these plans.

Engagement is taking place and is ongoing with disability groups in the city.

Consultation that has taken place should be used to help to inform the impact assessment. The Equality Impact Assessment process should continue to be used as a tool to aid consideration around whether we are meeting the aims of the Public Sector Equality.

Surinder Singh Equalities Officer, Ext 37 4148

6.4 Climate Emergency implications

As identified within the draft Local Transport Plan, transport is one of the largest sources of carbon emissions in Leicester, making up 25% of the city's carbon footprint in 2019, with transport-related emissions falling much slower than those from other sources. This reflects the national position. Following Leicester City Council's declaration of a Climate Emergency in 2019, and the council's ambition to reach carbon neutrality, tackling these emissions is a vital part of the council's work.



The draft plan sets out a vision for transport in the city, with the Climate Emergency and need to achieve carbon neutrality identified as one of the plan's four key objectives. The vision includes measures such as supporting and enabling a shift to sustainable travel options such as walking and cycling, and providing the necessary infrastructure for decarbonisation of transport, especially zero emission vehicles, following a guiding principle of a sustainable travel hierarchy. The plan also highlights many co-benefits of these changes such as improved air quality, health outcomes and accessibility. Implementation of the Local Transport Plan is therefore a vital part of the council's work to deliver upon its Climate Emergency ambitions.

The proposed Workplace Parking Levy, if progressed, would provide a key source of stable funding, allowing the council to plan a long-term programme of actions identified within the draft plan, and would therefore be expected to have a significant positive impact upon the goal of achieving carbon neutrality.

Aidan Davis, Sustainability Officer, Ext 37 2284

6.5 Other implications (You will need to have considered other implications in preparing this report. Please indicate which ones apply?)

None.

7. Background information and other papers:

None

8. Summary of appendices:

The LTP/WPL consultation documents can be found at: <u>Leicester Transport Plan</u> <u>Consultation</u>

9. Is this a private report (If so, please indicate the reasons and state why it is not in the public interest to be dealt with publicly)?

No

10. Is this a "key decision"? If so, why?

No

7

7